ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 28, 2005
1:04 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Jay Ranras, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Ral ph Samuel s, Co-Chair
Representative Jim El ki ns
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Kurt O son

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative Mary Kapsner

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l menbers present
COMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 5
Uging the United States Congress to reauthorize the Methane
Hydrat e Research and Devel opnent Act.

- MOVED HC SJR 5((0&G) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 19
"An Act relating to pesticides and broadcast chem cals; and
providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CS HB 19 (RES) OUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 26
"An Act relating to short-term comrercial fishing crewrenber
Iicenses; and providing for an effective date.™
- MOVED CS HB 26 (RES) OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SJR 5
SHORT TI TLE: REAUTHORI ZE METHANE HYDRATE RESEARCH ACT
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) THERRI AULT

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -1- February 28, 2005



02/ 02/ 05
02/ 02/ 05
02/ 07/ 05
02/ 07/ 05
02/ 07/ 05
02/ 09/ 05
02/ 09/ 05

02/ 10/ 05
02/ 10/ 05
02/ 14/ 05
02/ 14/ 05
02/ 15/ 05
02/ 15/ 05
02/ 15/ 05
02/ 18/ 05
02/ 18/ 05

02/ 28/ 05

BILL: HB 19

(S)
(S)
(S)

o L0090

I IT2TII3U

~

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

RES

RES AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

Moved SIJIR 5 Qut of Committee

M NUTE( RES)

RES RPT 5DP

DP: SEEKINS, ELTON, STEVENS B, DYSOQN,
STEDMAN

TRANSM TTED TO (H)

VERSION: SJR 5

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

&G, RES

O&G AT 5: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

Moved HCS SIR 5(0&3G Qut of Commttee

M NUTE( 0%G)
O8G RPT HCS(08G) 5DP
DP; SAMUELS, GARDNER, ROKEBERG,

DAHLSTROM KCOHRI NG
RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

SHORT TI TLE: PESTI Cl DE & BROADCAST CHEM CALS

SPONSOR( S) :

01/ 10/ 05
01/ 10/ 05
01/ 10/ 05
02/ 23/ 05
02/ 23/ 05
02/ 23/ 05
02/ 28/ 05

BILL: HB 26

I3IT222I3

REPRESENTATI VE(S) MEYER

PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
RES, FIN

RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

SHORT TI TLE: SHORT- TERM COM FI SH NG CREWVEMBER LI CENSE

SPONSOR( S) :

01/ 10/ 05
01/ 10/ 05
01/ 10/ 05
02/ 09/ 05
02/ 09/ 05
02/ 09/ 05
02/ 16/ 05
02/ 16/ 05
02/ 16/ 05
02/ 16/ 05
02/ 16/ 05

HOUSE RES COW TTEE

IIITITTITT3Z

REPRESENTATI VE(S) MOSES BY REQUEST

PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
FSH, RES, FIN

FSH AT 8: 30 AM CAPI TOL 124

Heard & Held

M NUTE( FSH)

FSH RPT CS(FSH) 4DP 1NR

DP: WLSON, ELKINS, LEDOUX, THOVAS
NR SALMON

FSH AT 8: 30 AM CAPI TOL 124

Moved CSHB 26( FSH) Qut of Conmittee

-2- February 28, 2005



02/ 16/ 05 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

02/ 23/ 05 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124
02/ 23/ 05 (H) Schedul ed But Not Heard
02/ 28/ 05 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

JCE BALASH, Staff

to Senator Cene Therriault

Joint Conmittee on Legislative Budget and Audit

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SJR 5 on behalf of the sponsor,
Senator Therriault.

DALE BONDURANT

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to coal and rmethane
extraction in the Homer area.

ADAM BERG, St af f

to Representative Carl Moses

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 26 on behalf of the sponsor,
Represent ati ve Moses.

PAUL LASANKI E, Director

Di vi sion of Wirkers Conpensation

Department of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent (DQOL)
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng HB 26.

SARAH d LBERTSON, Legi sl ative Liaison

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng HB 26.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR RALPH SAMUELS called the House Resources Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:04:02 PM Represent ati ves
Crawford, Gatto, Elkins, Seaton, Sanuels, Ranras, and O son were
there at the call to order. Represent ati ves Kapsner and LeDoux

arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 3- February 28, 2005



SJR 5- REAUTHORI ZE METHANE HYDRATE RESEARCH ACT

CO CHAIR SAMJELS announced that the first order of Dbusiness
woul d be SENATE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 5, Urging the United States
Congress to reauthorize the Methane Hydrate Research and
Devel opnent Act.

JOE BALASH, Staff, to Senator Gene Therriault, Joint Commttee
on Legislative Budget and Audit, said SIJR 5 urges Congress to
reaut hori ze the Methane Hydrate Research Act of 2000. He said
it asks Congress to reauthorize it for five years and to
appropriate $70 mllion. M. Balash said that the potential
additional reserves in gas hydrates in the North Slope could
change the way the state proceeds with the gas pipeline project.
The sizing of the pipe, access points, financing costs, and
tariffs may all be inpacted if additional reserves are verified,
he opi ned.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what the cost was of the origina
aut hori zati on.

MR BALASH said it was about $47 nillion.
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that the background materials said it
was tine to get out in the field, and he questioned how so nuch

noney coul d be spent "noving paper."

MR. BALASH answered that "a trenmendous anmount of the noney was

spent here in Al aska, but not solely in Alaska.”" He added that
there was conputer-nodeling work, seismc work, and "as far as
how t he noney was spent, | don't know "

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if there is any evidence of this
bei ng successfully done anywhere else in the world.

MR. BALASH said, "There is a field in Siberia that, it appears,
gas hydrates may be releasing into free gas form and nmai ntai ni ng
pressure that otherwise would have declined, but it's very
[imted i nformation."

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWCRD said he believed, "we were actually
getting sonme gas hydrates [that] were regenerating into free gas
on the North Sl ope."

MR. BALASH said the presence of hydrates is from [cold]

tenperature or [high] pressure, and he is not aware of any of
the hydrate releasing into free gas in any of the fields.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 4- February 28, 2005



“Maybe it has been," he said, but he has not read of it in his
[iterature reviews.

CO CHAI R SAMUELS said, "You can either reduce the pressure...or
you have to change the heat...using glycol or even replacing it
wth CR2." He added that the hydrates are only found under deep
water or very cold tenperatures. In Al aska, hydrates are found
north of the Brooks Range, he added.

DALE BONDURANT, Sol dotna, stated his opposition to any effort to
devel op coal or nethane gas in the Honer area. He said it wll
destroy that area, pollute Cook Inlet, and adversely affect
fisheries. He added that he attended several neetings in
opposition to the devel opnent of shallow gas wells and shall ow
coal seans of Kachenak Bay. As of now the City of Honer has a
supply of good water, but in low areas the water is not for

human consunption, he said. He discussed the negative inpact
oi | devel opnent had on farns in the Texas area where corn stal ks
were small and stopped producing. The punping of coal and
met hylene gas will pollute the bay and destroy the fisheries

he said, and the noise itself will drive visitors and residents
away, making Honer a ghost town. Schools will have to nove, he
concl uded.

CO CHAIR SAMUELS thanked M. Bondurant and said that gas
hydrates will be found only on the North Sl ope.

CO CHAIR RAMRAS noved to report HCS SIJR 5(0&%05 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and zero fiscal notes. There
bei ng no objection, it was so ordered.

HB 19- PESTI Cl DE & BROADCAST CHEM CALS

CO- CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 19, "An Act relating to pesticides and
broadcast chem cals; and providing for an effective date."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reported that the City of Anchorage
requi renents are conpatible with HB 19.

1:15:52 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report the proposed CSHB 19,

version 24-LS0149\Y, Bullock, 2/11/05, out of commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 5- February 28, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO objected so he could conment on the
salaries of state workers. He said that the new position for HB
19 pays a salary of $59,000, but the annual benefits will cost
$27, 000. He will not object to the bill, but wanted to comment
on the PERS crisis. He renoved his objection.

CO CHAIR RAMRAS announced that hearing no further objection,
CSHB 19(RES) was reported from the House Resources Standing
Comm ttee.

HB 26- SHORT- TERM COM FI SHI NG CREWWVEMBER LI CENSE

CO CHAIR SAMUELS announced that the final order of business
would be HOUSE BILL NO 26 "An Act relating to short-term
commercial fishing crewrenber |icenses; and providing for an
effective date.”

1:18: 54 PM

ADAM BERG Staff to Representative Carl Mses, Al aska State
Legislature, told the conmttee that HB 26 sinply allows for the
purchase of a seven-day commercial fishing crewrenber |I|icense.
Currently a yearlong license is $60 for a resident and $180 for
a non-resident, he said, and the bill allows for a $30, seven-
day license for a resident or non-resident. He said that this
will maximze options for fishernen, allowing them to hire
short-term help or charge tourists to see an Alaska fishing
operation up-close and hands-on. He said that often friends or
famly will want to join the crew

1:19: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  GATTO  asked for comment s regar di ng t he
fisherman's fund.

MR. BERG said that the original version of the bill would have
excluded short-term license holders from the fisherman's fund

and the Departnent of Labor (DCL) requested omtting that. He
said he is not sure of the |egal reasons.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the vessel owners would end up
paying for any injuries occurring on the boat.

MR. BERG said he wasn't sure but thought there was a cap, and he
deferred to M. Lasankie.

1: 22: 05 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 6- February 28, 2005



PAUL LASANKIE, Director, Division of Wrkers Conpensation
Department of Labor and Wrkforce Devel opnment (DOL), said the
fisherman's fund is adm nistered through DOL.

CO CHAI R SAMUELS said he understands the goal of the bill is for
| odges to sell the fishing experience to tourists, and he asked
what the pros and cons are of including the fisherman's fund.

MR. LASANKIE replied that the short-term conmmercial license is
intended to neet peak demand for crew, who would be fishernman
and should be included in the fisherman's fund. He said the

second group of individuals desiring a short-term license is
uni que, and the fund has never had to address the idea of an
i ndi vidual holding a commercial fishing license and not being
able to access the fund. "Qur concern was just right along
those lines, that everyone who has a commercial fisherman's
I icense of whatever duration would be able to pay into the fund
and make a claimagainst the fund," he expl ai ned.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that the fund supplies the first
$2,500 of medi cal costs because fishernmen have a $2,500
deducti bl e.

MR. LASANKIE said that was correct, and in nobst cases it is
limted to $2,500 for people who do not have nedi cal insurance.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said a $30 license will pay less than $12
into the fund since the fund gets 40 percent of I|icense fees.
He asked if M. Lasankie wants to accept nedical liability,
especially for sonmeone who is new on the job, for $12.

MR. LASANKIE said that is a conundrum He added that the anount
of noney brought into the fund per day of liability is nore from

short-term licenses than |ong-term |icenses. But he does ask
the question if this will bring in nore inexperienced crew who
will be nore likely to make a claim

CO CHAIR SAMIELS offered that an inexperienced person can get a
long-termlicense now. Children can participate, he added.

MR. LASANKIE said that is true. He thinks the children of
fi shernmen get good training.

The commttee took an at-ease from 1:27 PMto 1:28 PM

1: 27: 58 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -7- February 28, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he requested legal opinions from
Legi slative Legal Affairs, and he was told that the fisherman's

fund probably will not lose its dedicated fund provision if the
| egi sl ation does not extend liability coverage to the short-term
| i cense hol ders. The second opinion addressed the ability to

di stinguish between short-term license holders and |ong-term
Iicense holders wthout breaking equal protection |aws, and the
advice given, he said, was that it would be fine as long as
there is a difference between those two groups of people.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the departnent thinks that by
all owi ng short-termlicenses, the state will be |osing noney.

MR. LASANKIE responded that the departnent has a hard tine
gquantifying what the fiscal inpacts wll be.

COCHAIR SAMIJELS stated that it could be possible that
experienced people wll be buying short-termlicenses.

MR. LASANKI E said there is no way to analyze it.
1:31:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if a crewrenber were to buy a short-
termlicense, how much would go to the fisherman's fund.

VR. LASANKIE answered 39 percent, net of the wvendor's
per cent age.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked where the 39 percent would go if
short-term 1license holders were not contributing to the
fisherman's fund.

MR. LASANKIE said it will still go to the fund.
1:32: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that this would allow one tourist to
observe fishing operations and a second tourist to actively
engage, and both woul d be covered by the fisherman's fund.

MR. LASANKIE said "Yes, but there is a requirenment, we believe,
t hat soneone actually be engaged in comrercial fishing, so there
m ght be a potential question if soneone had the |license and was
just a bystander. That's sonmething we haven't pursued beyond
noting that there m ght be such a problem™”

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 8- February 28, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked that in order to go on a fishing
boat, even as an observer, does one need a |icense?

MR. LASANKIE said he does not have an answer, but he didn't
t hi nk so.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that if sonmeone is on board and
not engaged at all, a license is not needed. But if someone
ties up the boat, throws fish into the hold, or participates in
any way, he or she nust have a commercial fishing |icense.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked, so someone who is not engaged woul d
not need that |icense?

CO CHAIR SAMUELS said that is correct--they don't need a |license
now or after this |egislation.

CO CHAI R RAMRAS asked how nuch disclosure is required for each
i cense, what paperwork does a person have to sign regarding the
fisherman's fund, and what steps will the captain be required to
take to disclose the risks to novices?

MR. LASANKIE said that the Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane is
| ooki ng at what would be required for that |icense.

SARAH G LBERTSON, Legi sl ative Li ai son, Ofice of t he
Comm ssi oner, Al aska Departnment of Fish & Ganme, said she did not
know what di scl osures were required.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said it is a matter of federal naritine
| aw.

1: 37: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD asked how much demand there m ght be for
t hese short-term i censes.

MR. BERG said that it is unclear how nuch interest there is.
One fisherman, he said, put a one-day fishing trip on his web
site and got 1,200 hits in 12 hours. "There's been a |ot of
interest just in tourismin general on getting off the Gayline
Bus tour and doing your own thing," he said.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that currently it is just |ike buying

a sport-fishing |icense. It is just an application with no
di scl osure, he said. The disclosures between a vessel and a

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 9- February 28, 2005



non-vessel fishery are different. Enpl oyees on a vessel nust
sign a contract with the captain. Representative Seaton said he
is concerned that the short-term license holder wll get ful
nmedi cal coverage for a small anmount of noney. He said it is
unfunded liabilities for the fisherman's fund for the benefit of
the tourist industry.

CO- CHAIR SAMUELS said that the price is only $60 now. He asked
why the short-term license is for seven days, since tourists
usual |y woul d want a one-day |icense.

MR. BERG sai d the nunber of days has varied. The bill went into
the Fisheries Conmittee with a one-day and three-day |icense
and the conmttee changed it to seven, because of the variety of
fishery activities. The Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane just
wanted to deal with one length of tinme, so the committee settled
on a seven-day |icense.

1: 43: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that HB 26 covers the tourist who
pays to join a fishery, but it also could be used to get
i nexperienced deckhands while not paying them enough to get a
commercial |icense. It comes down to cheap | abor, he said, and
| owers the professionalism of the industry. He added that he
has an anmendment .

CO CHAI R SAMUELS disputed that if a captain only needs help for
seven days, he or she could hire experienced people with a
short-term | i cense. He said a captain would not seek help just
because it is $30 cheaper. He said he would like to anend the
bill tolimt a short-termlicense to one per person per year.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said that she thinks it is inportant to
only have one tine-length option. She said that ADF&G didn't
want various options.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he thinks if the conmttee anended
the bill to prohibit getting paid while working under a short-

term Jlicense then it will be a recreational, touri st
opportunity, and a true crewrenber woul dn't get one.

1: 50: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON nmoved Amendnent 1, | abeled 24-LS0181\Y.2
Ut er nrohl e, 2/28/ 05, which read:

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -10- February 28, 2005



Page 2, line 17, followi ng "nay not":

| nsert:

"be paid, receive crew shares, or receive other
conpensation for work performed under the license and
may not"

CO CHAI R SAMUJELS obj ected for purposes of discussion
The commttee took an at-ease from1:51 PMto 1:52 PM
1:52: 09 PM

MR. BERG said he and the sponsor tal ked about the anendnent and
decided to let the commttee decide on it. "W're easy on this
one. \Whatever the resource comrttee thinks," he said.

CO CHAI R SAMUJELS renoved his objection to Arendnent 1.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked for the sponsor's view of Amendnent
1.

MR. BERG said that Representative Mses wasn't going to nake
that switch hinself. He said he thinks there are people who
woul d work briefly who are skilled. "We don't think fisherman
are out |ooking for cheap labor...and put their operation at
risk," he said.

COCHAIR SAMJELS said seeing no objections, Amendnent 1 is
adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON brought up the question of the fisherman's
fund. A tourist won't do dangerous jobs, he said, so he thinks
Amendnent 1 takes care of that problem but he wanted to air it.

CO CHAI R SAMUELS noved to report CSHB 26(FSH) out of committee,
as anended, with individual recomendations and the acconpanyi ng
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 26(RES) was
reported fromthe House Resources Standing Commttee.

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 1:56:46
PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -11- February 28, 2005



